


 
 
 

 
 
 
Ephrata Borough 
Master Plan for Haller Property 
 
Meeting Minutes 
Location: Ephrata Borough Hall 
February 24, 2009 
 
 
Those in attendance: 
 
Company Name        Name 
 
Borough of Ephrata: Community Relations Manager                  Shirley M. Daniels (SD) 
Kimmel Bogrette Architecture + Site (KBA+S)                           Jon Trump (JT) 
                                                                                                             Cara Desert (CD) 
Simone Collins Landscape Architecture (SC)                               Justin Keller (JK) 
 
           
Refer to sign-in sheet (attached) for attendance list 
 
The following items noted below are intended to accurately reflect the content of meeting discussions and subsequent actions.  Should 
anyone have additional comments or differing understanding it is requested that they notify the architect as soon as possible upon receipt.  
Otherwise, all parties agree that these minutes stand as written.  
 
 
Public Meeting #3 
Item Description           
 

1. The meeting was called to order an all in attendance were asked to sign the sign-in sheet. 
2. JT and JK introduced themselves and noted there were several new faces in the audience. 
3. JK reviewed the concepts and ideas recorded from the previous public and committee meetings. 
4. JK went through the slides explaining the process leading up to the final conceptual site plan. 
5. JT explained the approach taken to develop the buildings conceptual plans and sketches. 
6. The floor was then opened up to the residents for comments and questions. 
7. The first question asked if there were any concepts for energy use for the buildings.  It was noted that this 

project creates a great opportunity to be innovative since it is highly visible. 
A. JT described several options that could be researched including photovoltaic (solar power), wind power, 

and passive solar design. 
8. A question was asked about the Bank Barn and whether or not the first floor and basement could be 

separated for multi-uses. 

 

 
 

151 E. 10th Avenue, Suite 300 
Conshohocken, PA  19428 

Phone: 610.834.7805 
Fax:  610.834.7815 

E-mail architects@kimmel-bogrette.com 



A. JT responded that the floors could be made separate to allow for two different events to go on 
simultaneously. 

9. A question was asked in regards to the span of time it would take before the trees filled out in the arboretum. 
A. JK responded that it would be a multi-year project.  He stated that it would probably take around 10 

years to see a lush canopy for a 2 ½” to 3 ½” caliber tree. 
10. A question was asked about the condition of the soils. 

A. JK replied that the soil is an urban land complex soil which means it is brought from off site or disturbed 
(like from quarrying). 

B. JK noted that the upper field is successfully used for agriculture now.  The soils on the upper field are 
likely to support the plants for the arboretum as well. 

11. There was a question about what keeps the buildings from deteriorating since they were not shown being 
renovated until phase 3 and 4. 
A. JT responded that both buildings are in good condition at the moment and with an ongoing maintenance 

program will stay in a reasonable condition until renovations can occur. 
B. JK added that there is a list on general maintenance items included in the report. 

12. A question was raised about where the trails were proposed to be located on the site. 
A. JK pointed out the trails on the site plan explaining what the main trail connects and where the loop trails 

go around the site. 
13. A question was asked as to whether or not the island was going to remain inaccessible. 

A. JK responded that for the Master Plan, only the replacement of invasive plant species. 
B. JK added that a bridge would be too costly but that the Borough might consider allowing the Scouts use 

of the island. 
14. A question was asked about how many people can use the barn. 

A. JT answered that 130 to 180 people could fit comfortably in a banquet setting.  He explained that the 
floor plans were meant to shown one possible configuration of the space.  More or less people may fit into 
the space depending on the event. 

15. A question was asked about how many people can use the mill. 
A. JT replied that it would depend on the use; around 40 to 50 people on the first floor, 20 to 25 people on 

the second floor and 15 to 20 on the third floor.  He also noted that the second floor was laid out to 
allow for two groups to use the space separately with a partition divider. 

16. A question was raised about the mill and the addition being in the flood plain. 
A. JT responded that the addition was designed to sit above the flood plain and the bridge connection avoids 

building in the flood plain.  He also noted that the first floor would be lowered but still remains above the 
flood line. 

17. A comment was made that the proposed addition takes away from the view of the Mill from Old Mill Road.  It 
was asked it there were ways of dealing with the flood plain. 
A. JT responded that the conceptual sketch shown was just one possibility.  As the project moves forward 

other options and possibly moving the addition would be looked at. 
B. JK added that moving the addition toward the creek would disrupt the vegetation and if it moved on the 

other side of the Mill, it would interrupt the historic core. 
C. JK also noted that the addition was designed to just touch the building. 

18. A comment was made that the entrance of the Mill Race into the Mill was poorly patched over.  It was asked if 
bringing back the Mill Race was a possibility since it floods anyway. 
A. JK explained that the expense involved would be substantial and was not considered for this report.  He 

also explained that there would be issues of the race flooding.  The Master Plan proposes an interpretive 
race as an alternate to an actual one. 

19. Another resident seconded the idea of resurrecting the Mill Race but suggested that perhaps it was only a 
small pool that wasn’t connected to the creek.  It would look like a race, but not be functional. 

20. Another resident agreed that the Mill is beautiful, but thought the addition might look nicer if it were made 
out of stone to match the Mill. 
A. JT responded that building designs are not supposed to duplicate historic buildings, according the 

National Historic Building Council.  He noted that the addition incorporates a lot of glass to allow it to 
disappear into the background. 

B. JK added that historically the Mill has had several additions and attachments like the saw mill and elevator 
lift. 

21. A comment was made about the location of the stage next to the creek.  It was noted that the noise from the 
water after a rain storm is very loud and makes it difficult to hear.  It was suggested that the amphitheater may 
want to move away from the creek. 

22. A question was asked if accommodations for buses were incorporated in the parking design. 



A. JK responded that it would have to be looked into. 
23. A question was asked about whether or not the buildings would be used year round. 

A. JT replied that yes, the intent was to have the buildings in use all the time. 
24. A question was asked about where the money was coming from to fund the project. 

A. JT responded that a banquet facility could be revenue generating.   
B. JK added that with the closing of Donecker’s more people would come to this site. 

25. A question was asked about the structure of the Mill. 
A. JT responded that the floors would have to be rebuilt and the structure replaced   
B. The resident noted that typically a private developer would look at the benefits of restructuring the Mill 

and then proceed with the project.  The resident felt that the Borough conceptualizes and is ready to 
build without looking at cost benefits. 

C. The resident also noted that there would be maintenance and didn’t see a banquet facility generating 
money unless a private developer was involved. 

26. A resident from the Eicher Arts Center spoke up, stating that renting has been a challenge for the Center but 
they have been successful.  The resident stated that the Eicher Arts Center rented to 225 groups this past 
year. 

27. A resident commented that with the Mill in the flood plain, it wouldn’t be efficient to build the addition.  The 
resident pointed out the hotel renovation on 322, stating that its not what it used to be. 
A. JT responded that it is an option to leave the Mill as it stands.  JT added that the addition was designed to 

stay out of the flood plain. 
B. JK noted that the Mill was left for phase 4 to possibly allow the other building and site to generate 

revenue and acquire more funding. 
C. It was noted that the Mill is either left the way it is or the whole building gets renovated. 

28. A question was asked if FEMA would allow the addition to be built. 
A. JT replied that according to FEMA’s current guidelines, yes, the addition could be built. 

29. A resident commented that they were glad the parking lot was changed to show less asphalt.  The resident 
also was glad to see that nature and plantings were an important part of the site plan. 

30. A question was asked as to whether or not the Borough would be running the site. 
A. SD responded that this issue has not been discussed yet. 

31. A question was asked about the trail across from the Haller Property, where the new apartments are going in. 
A. SD responded that the property along the creek across from the Haller Property does not belong to the 

Borough. 
32. A comment was made that this is a unique opportunity and site for the community.  The resident hopes that 

the project will move forward.  The resident stated that this was an exceptional community with a lot to offer 
and this would add “one more gem to the crown”. 

33. A second resident supported the previous comments. 
34. One resident walked up to the presentation screen and pointed to the site work on the upper field.  The 

resident then asked those in attendance how many were for the site improvements.  All but one raised their 
hand.  The resident then asked how many were for the renovations to the barn and mill at this time.  Only a 
handful of hands were raised. 
A. Another resident spoke up, stating that in this economy the residents are not ready to take on such costly 

improvements. 
B. A comment was made that the Borough should perform a cost benefit analysis before moving forward. 
C. SD replied that the Borough is only looking at site improvements at this time. 

35. A resident commented that it would be nice to see the Mill hold activities like art classes.  The resident stated 
that the community needs to decide what it wants and needs at this time. 

36. A comment was made that the Barn could work well as a cafeteria for the site.  The resident acknowledged 
that a cafeteria would take away the income a banquet facility would generate, but would allow visitors to the 
site a place to have lunch.  The resident felt this would be fantastic for the Borough; with the addition of this 
site a complete tour could be put together for tourists and the connections of paths through the site would tie 
everything together.  This would be good for attracting bus groups which would in turn help local businesses. 

37. A comment was made that this is a “wonderful project”. 
38. A resident commented about other projects short changing its site and resources and was glad this project 

really looked into all of its opportunities. 
39. SD noted that the Borough Committee chosen for this project was well represented.  The list of individuals 

involved in the committee can be found in the report. 
40. A question was asked about what the next step will be. 

A. JT responded that the consultants work is fulfilled for this project.  The consultants will be providing a 
report to the Borough Committee of their findings. 



41. SD added that grant money funded the Master Plan study. 







 2300-FM-RC0019B    5/2006 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources

Bureau of Recreation and Conservation

Item 
Number Work Item

Unit        
Cost

Total            
Cost

PHASE 1 TRAIL SPINE AND LOOP TRAILS $103,226

Professional services
Site/Topographic Survey of Improvement Areas 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Design Services - site design and engineering (15% of construction) 1 LS $10,914.00 $10,914.00
Contractor General Conditions - Bond / Layout / Mobilization / E&S / Ect. (10% of const.) 1 LS $7,276.00 $7,276.00
Cost Escalation Contingency (10% of construction) 1 LS $7,276.00 $7,276.00

Arboretum
Clearing / Miscellaneous Demolition 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
Regrade For Paths 190 CY $12.00 $2,280.00
Asphalt Path - 10' Wide 1,115 SY $30.00 $33,450.00

Mill - Loop Trails
Regrade For Paths 130 CY $12.00 $1,560.00
Earth Path Fine Grading - 3' Wide 60 CY $12.00 $720.00
Fisherman Access - Limestone Alverson Boulders 4 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Asphalt Path - 5' Wide (terrace & amphitheater) 205 SY $30.00 $6,150.00

Metal Swing Gate @ Old Driveway Entrance 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Signage - Wayfinding / Interpretive 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00

Evergreen Trees 22 EA $300.00 $6,600.00
Groundcover - Head Race Interpretation 1250 sf $4.00 $5,000.00

PHASE 2 ARBORETUM PLANTINGS $74,738

Professional Services
Design Services - Planting Design (15% of construction) 1 LS $8,137.50 $8,137.50
Contractor General Conditions - Bond / Layout / Mobilization / E&S / Ect. (10% of const.) 1 LS $5,425.00 $5,425.00
Cost Escalation Contingency (10% of construction) 1 LS $5,425.00 $5,425.00

Construction - General
Clearing / Miscellaneous Demolition 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Arboretum Plantings
Shade Trees 30 EA $600.00 $18,000.00
Ornamental Trees 35 EA $450.00 $15,750.00
Hydroseed Disturbed Areas 95,000 SF $0.10 $9,500.00
Restore Riparian Plantings 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Signage - Wayfinding / Interpretive / Identification 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00

PHASE 3. PARKING / SITE ACCESS / AMPHITHEATER / TERRACE $615,097

Professional Services
Site/Topographic Survey - Remainder of Site 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Soil Percolation Tests 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Design Services - Site Design and Engineering Only (15% of construction) 1 LS $66,455.25 $66,455.25
Contractor General Conditions - Bond / Layout / Mobilization / E&S / Ect. (10% of const.) 1 LS $44,303.50 $44,303.50
Cost Escalation Contingency (10% of construction) 1 LS $44,303.50 $44,303.50

Construction - General
Bury Overhead Electrical Wires - On Site 280 LF $50.00 $14,000.00
Clearing / Miscellaneous Demolition 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Regrade For Path & Parking 1200 CY $12.00 $14,400.00

Stabilized Turf Parking (46 Spaces)
Asphalt Access Drive - 20' Wide 835 SY $35.00 $29,225.00
6" Depth - Gravel Base for Stabilized Parking 175 CY $30.00 $5,250.00
3" Top Soil - Stabilized Parking 90 CY $45.00 $4,050.00

Porous Asphalt Parking Lot With Underground Stormwater Detention (22 Spaces)
3" Porous Asphalt Wearing Course - Parking Lot 745 SY $27.00 $20,115.00
2" AASHTO #57 Choker Course 40 CY $144.00 $5,760.00
12" AASHTO #3 Graded Stone Mix 250 CY $40.00 $10,000.00
Non-Woven Geotextile Underlayment 745 SY $8.00 $5,960.00
Pavement Markings - Parking Stalls and Pedestrian Crossings 500 LF $3.50 $1,750.00
Signage - Entry / Parking / Interpretive 1 LS $7,500.00 $7,500.00

DEVELOPMENT

Date Prepared: 05/26/2009         Applicant: EPHRATA BOROUGH                                                     

No.            
of Units

Project Title: EPHRATA BOROUGH - MASTER PLAN FOR THE HALLER PROPERTY                       

SITE - Detailed Development Budget Form



 2300-FM-RC0019B    5/2006 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources

Bureau of Recreation and Conservation

Item 
Number Work Item

Unit        
Cost

Total            
Cost

No.            
of Units

Events Court
Gravel Events Court - 6" Depth 140 CY $30.00 $4,200.00
Rough Stone Seat Wall Around Events Court - Dry Laid 140 LF $100.00 $14,000.00
Concrete Sidewalk @ Events Court and Entry 1,250 SF $6.00 $7,500.00
ADA Accessible Curb Cut 1 EA $600.00 $600.00
Asphalt Service Drive - 10' Wide 222 SY $35.00 $7,770.00

Asphalt Path - 10' Wide 615 SY $30.00 $18,450.00
Asphalt Path - 5' Wide 170 SY $30.00 $5,100.00
Post and Rail Fence 900 LF $10.00 $9,000.00

Lighting
Electrical Conduit/Service 1200 LF $15.00 $18,000.00
Pedestrian Pole Mounted Lights 11 EA $4,000.00 $44,000.00

Plantings
Shade Trees 10 EA $600.00 $6,000.00
Ornamental Trees 12 EA $450.00 $5,400.00
Evergreen Trees 16 EA $300.00 $4,800.00
Hydroseed Disturbed Areas 53,000 SF $0.10 $5,300.00

Barn Terrace
Clearing / Miscellaneous Demolition 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Regrade For Terrace 160 CY $12.00 $1,920.00
Terrace Paving - Irregular Flagstone 1 1/2" thick 1800 SF $25.00 $45,000.00
Terrace Steps 1 LS 10,000.00$    $10,000.00
Rough Stone Seat Wall - Dry Laid 190 LF $100.00 $19,000.00
Topsoil 38 CY $50.00 $1,900.00
Mulch 14 CY $65.00 $910.00
Shrub Plantings 40 EA $60.00 $2,400.00
Groundcover 1500 SF $4.00 $6,000.00

Amphitheater
Clearing / Miscellaneous Demolition 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
Fine Grading for Amphitheater 270 CY $12.00 $3,240.00
Amphitheater Stage Paving - Irregular Flagstone 1 1/2" thick 885 SF $25.00 $22,125.00
Arbor - Recycled Plastic w/ Stone Piers 1 LS 30,000.00$    $30,000.00
Amphitheater Seat Wall - C.I.P. Concrete 330 LF $40.00 $13,200.00
Electrical Conduit/Service - For Future Lighting 120 LF $15.00 $1,800.00
Hydroseed Disturbed Areas 15,000 SF $0.10 $1,500.00
Topsoil 38 CY $50.00 $1,900.00
Mulch 14 CY $65.00 $910.00
Ornamental Trees 6 EA $450.00 $2,700.00
Shrub Plantings 15 EA $60.00 $900.00
Groundcover 1500 SF $4.00 $6,000.00

PHASE 4. MILL - SITE IMPROVEMENTS $124,511

Design Services - Planting Design (15% of construction) 1 LS $13,834.50 $13,834.50
Contractor General Conditions - Bond / Layout / Mobilization / E&S / Ect. (10% of const.) 1 LS $9,223.00 $9,223.00
Cost Escalation Contingency (10% of construction) 1 LS $9,223.00 $9,223.00

Clearing / Miscellaneous Demolition 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Demolition Asphalt (old driveway) 360 SY $8.00 $2,880.00

Stabilized Turf Overflow Parking (32 Spaces)
6" Depth - Gravel Base 185 CY $30.00 $5,550.00
3" Top Soil 90 CY $45.00 $4,050.00
Asphalt Path - 5' Wide 200 CY $30.00 $6,000.00
Post and Rail Fence 500 LF $10.00 $5,000.00

Asphalt Emergency Access Drive / Trail - 10' Wide 290 SY $35.00 $10,150.00
Asphalt Path From Emergency Stairs - 5' Wide 85 SY $30.00 $2,550.00

Electrical Conduit/Service - For Lighting 260 LF 15.00$           $3,900.00
Pedestrian Pole Mounted Lights 4 EA $4,000.00 $16,000.00

Miller's House Interpretation 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Groundcover - Tail Race Interpretation 1250 sf $4.00 $5,000.00

Plantings
Restore Riparian Plantings 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Shade Trees 10 EA $600.00 $6,000.00
Ornamental Trees 15 EA $450.00 $6,750.00
Evergreen Trees 10 EA $300.00 $3,000.00
Hydroseed Disturbed Areas 4,000 SF $0.10 $400.00

TOTAL: $917,571



Master Plan for Haller Property
Ephrata Borough

February 17, 2009

BUILDING - Preliminary Cost Estimate

Construction Costs LOW RANGE MIDDLE RANGE HIGH RANGE
Area/S.F. Est. Cost / S.F. Sub-Total Est. Cost/S.F. Sub-Total Est. Cost / S.F. Sub-Total

Existing Mill Renovations
Renovations 4,380 $158 $692,040 $174 $762,120 $190 $832,200
Mechanical 4,380 $20 $87,600 $22 $96,360 $24 $105,120

Electrical 4,380 $16 $70,080 $18 $78,840 $19 $83,220
Plumbing 1,690 $6 $10,140 $6 $10,140 $7 $11,830

New Mill Additions (New Entrance, Enclosed Bridge & Fire Stair)
New Construction 3,360 $142 $477,120 $158 $530,880 $174 $584,640

Mechanical 3,360 $18 $60,480 $16 $53,760 $22 $73,920
Electrical 3,360 $14 $47,040 $14 $47,040 $18 $60,480
Plumbing 2,655 $6 $15,930 $6 $15,930 $6 $15,930

Subtotal Building Cost $1,460,430 $1,595,070 $1,767,340

Area/S.F. Est. Cost / S.F. Sub-Total Est. Cost/S.F. Sub-Total Est. Cost / S.F. Sub-Total
Existing Barn Renovations

Renovations 5,020 $158 $793,160 $174 $873,480 $190 $953,800
Mechanical 7,030 $20 $140,600 $22 $154,660 $24 $168,720

Electrical 7,030 $16 $112,480 $18 $126,540 $19 $133,570
Plumbing 7,030 $6 $42,180 $6 $42,180 $7 $49,210

New Barn Addition (New Entrance, Stair & Elevator)
New Construction 2,010 $142 $285,420 $158 $317,580 $174 $349,740

Mechanical 2,010 $18 $36,180 $16 $32,160 $22 $44,220
Electrical 2,010 $14 $28,140 $14 $28,140 $18 $36,180
Plumbing 2,010 $6 $12,060 $6 $12,060 $6 $12,060

Subtotal Building Cost $1,373,840 $1,514,440 $1,655,040

Soft Costs
Arch, Struct, MEP (8%) $116,834 $127,606 $141,387
Civil Engineering (estimate) $50,000 $60,000 $70,000
Total Soft Costs $166,834 $187,606 $211,387

Subtotal Building + Soft Costs $3,167,939 $3,484,721 $3,845,154.40

Additional Soft Costs (estimates only)
Phone / Security / Technology L.S. $100,000 L.S. $150,000 L.S. $200,000
Fees, Permits and Approvals (5%) $158,397 $174,236 $192,258
Contingency (8% of construction) $253,435 $278,778 $307,612
Construction Manager (4.5%) Optional 

Subtotal Additional Soft Costs $511,832 $603,014 $699,870

Total Project Cost $3,679,771 $4,087,735 $4,545,024.47

5% Cost Escalation for Construction in 2010 $3,863,759 $4,292,122 $4,772,276

Prepared by:  Kimmel Bogrette Architecture + Site




